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Q&A tender offer for shareholders of Caverion 
 

• Question: I have already accepted the tender offer by North Holdings 3 – is it possible to withdraw my 
acceptance? 

• Answer: An acceptance of North Holdings 3’s tender offer may be withdrawn by a shareholder of 
Caverion at any time before the expiration of the offer period (including any extended or discontinued 
extended offer period), until North Holdings 3 has announced that all conditions to completion have 
been fulfilled or waived by North Holdings 3, that is, North Holdings 3 has declared the tender offer 
unconditional. After such announcement, the shares already tendered may not be withdrawn, except 
in the event that a third party announces a competing public tender offer for the shares before the 
execution of the completion trades of the shares. 
 
A valid withdrawal of an acceptance of North Holdings 3’s tender offer requires that a withdrawal 
notification is submitted in writing to the account operator to whom the original acceptance was 
submitted.  
 
For nominee-registered shares, the shareholders of Caverion must request the relevant custodian of 
the nominee-registered shareholder to execute a withdrawal notification.  
 
If a shareholder of Caverion validly withdraws an acceptance of North Holdings 3’s tender offer, the 
sales reservation or the restriction on the right of disposal with respect to shares will be removed within 
three (3) Finnish banking days of the receipt of a withdrawal notification.  
 
A shareholder of Caverion who has validly withdrawn its acceptance of the North Holdings 3’s tender 
offer may accept the tender offer again during the offer period (including any extended or discontinued 
extended offer period).  

 
• Question: Will it cost me to withdraw my acceptance of the North Holdings 3 tender offer? 
• Answer: A shareholder of Caverion who withdraws the acceptance of the tender offer is obligated to 

pay any fees that the operator operating the relevant book-entry account or the custodial nominee of 
a nominee-registered holding may collect for the withdrawal. If a competing offer has been announced 
during the offer period and the completion of the tender offer has not taken place, neither North 
Holdings 3 nor Nordea (as the arranger) will charge the shareholders for validly withdrawing their 
acceptance in such a situation. 

 
• Question: When will North Holdings 3 ’s offer period expire? 

• Answer: The offer period for the North Holdings 3 tender offer commenced on November 24, 2022. 
As a result of the new information included in the supplement document published on February 28, 
2023, North Holdings 3 has announced that it extends the offer period to continue until March 16, 
2023, until 4.00 p.m. (Finnish time) unless the offer period is extended further or any extended offer 
period is discontinued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the tender offer. Due to Crayfish 
BidCo announcing an increase in the offer price under its competing tender offer, North Holdings 3 
has announced that it continues to evaluate the amended competing offer by Crayfish BidCo and its 
alternatives and will announce its conclusions in due course, and may therefore extend the offer period 
further, if needed. 

 
• Question: Where can I receive more information on accepting the North Holdings 3’s tender offer and 

related instructions? 

• Answer: Most Finnish account operators will send a new notice regarding the tender offer and related 
instructions to those who are registered in the shareholders’ register of Caverion maintained by 
Euroclear Finland. Shareholders of Caverion who do not receive such instructions from their account 
operator or asset manager should first contact their account operator or asset manager and can 
subsequently contact Nordea Bank Abp by sending them an email to caverion-offer@nordea.com, 
where such shareholders of Caverion can receive information on submitting their acceptance of the 
tender offer. Shareholders are also advised to carefully familiarise themselves with the tender offer 
document and its supplements by North Holdings 3. 

 
• Question: Where can I get additional information on North Holdings 3’s tender offer and Crayfish 

BidCo’s tender offer? 
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• Answer: Caverion will regularly provide updates on the tender offer processes through stock exchange 
releases. We also recommend that shareholders of Caverion carefully familiarise themselves with the 
tender offer document by North Holdings 3 published on November 24, 2022 (as supplemented) and 
the tender offer document expected to be published by Crayfish BidCo on or about March 6, 2023  (as 
may be supplemented from time to time), as well as with other information published by North 
Holdings 3 and Crayfish BidCo on their respective tender offers as included on the websites 
https://caverion-offer.com/ and https://superior-offer.com/ 

https://caverion-offer.com/
https://superior-offer.com/

